
Agenda 

Jefferson County Planning Commission 

Tuesday, November 12, 2024 at 7:00 PM 

Office of Planning & Zoning 
116 E. Washington Street, Charles Town, WV 25414 

Phone Number: 304-728-3228  /  Email: planningdepartment@jeffersoncountywv.org 
Website: www.jeffersoncountywv.org  

By order of the President of the Jefferson County Planning Commission,  
Public Participation is available in-person only. 

The meeting will be broadcast live via ZOOM for viewing purposes only. 

In-Person Meeting Location: County Commission Meeting Room located in the lower level of the 
Charles Town Library (side entrance on Samuel Street) 
200 East Washington Street, Charles Town, WV 25414 

ZOOM Broadcast Information*: Meeting ID: 830 0882 1278 
Meeting Link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83008821278  

*If watching live broadcast, please ensure your microphone is muted and be mindful that your video is
streaming to others.

1. Approval of Meeting Minutes: October 8, 2024 meeting

2. Request for postponement

The following items are open for public comment 

3. Public Workshop:  Concept Plan for a Major Site Development. The proposal consists of
the following: Phase 1: a 304,000 square foot water bottling facility with associated parking on a
proposed 30-acre parcel; and, Phase 2: a 696,000 square foot water bottling facility with associated
parking on a proposed 66-acre parcel. The proposal will include the required stormwater management
facilities. Property Owners:   St, Kearneysville, WV; Parcel ID:

; Size: ~260 acres; Zoning District: Industrial Commercial (File #24-6-SP).

4. Public Hearing: Waiver Request from Section 24.112C of the Subdivision Regulations to extend the two
year vesting period for approved Major Subdivision Concept Plans, which requires that a preliminary plat
must be submitted and approved within the two year period of time for which the concept plan direction
is in effect, extending to November 15, 2026 for the Sunnyside Major Subdivision. Property Owners:

;  Industrial Park Lots  &  (9 existing lots) located on
 Lane, south of  Road, Charles Town, WV; Tax District:  Map: ;

Parcels: ; Size: ~53 acres (combined acreage); Zoning
District: Residential-Light Industrial-Commercial (File # 24-27-PCW).

5. Public Hearing: Waiver Request from Section 20.203B of the Subdivision Regulations to allow the
opening of the park property prior to processing a Concept Plan and Site Plan and prior to initiating any
improvements on the property. Property Owners:  /
Contact: ;  Road, Charles Town, WV; Parcel ID: ; Size:
82 acres; Zoning District: Rural (File # 24-28-PCW).



Planning Commission Agenda 
November 12, 2024 
Page 2 of 2 

There is no public comment for the following items. 

6. Discussion and Action on the Harvest Homes, LLC Zoning Map Amendment Request: Planning
Commission review and recommendation to the County Commission regarding whether the petition for a
Zoning Map Amendment to rezone three Media Farm properties totaling 127+/- acres from Rural to
Residential Growth is consistent with the 2035 Comprehensive Plan. Owner/Applicant: ,

. Property Location:  Lane, Ranson, WV (Parcel ID: ), 
 Lane, Ranson, WV (Parcel ID: ); and,  Lane, Ranson, WV

(Parcel ID: ). Combined acreage: approximately 127 acres; Zoning District: Rural (File
#24-2-Z).

7. Discussion and Recommendation:

Staff report back on recommendations related to possible changes to the Solar Energy Facility Ordinance
requirements.

8. Discussion and Recommendation:

Draft FY 26 Planning and Zoning Budget recommendation for use by the Department of Engineering,
Planning, and Zoning.

9. Discussion and Recommendation:

FY 25 1st Quarter Quarterly Report to County Commission

10. Reports from Legal Counsel

11. Planner’s Memo

a. Planning Commissioner Self Evaluation Review

b. 2025 Planning Commission Schedule and Deadlines

12. President’s Report

13. Actionable Correspondence

14. Non-Actionable Correspondence



Draft Meeting Minutes 

Jefferson County Planning Commission 

October 8, 2024 

The Jefferson County Planning Commission met on October 8, 2024, at 7:00 pm with the following 

Planning Commission members present: Mike Shepp, President, Aaron Howell, Vice President; Wade 

Louthan, Secretary; Jack Hefestay, Cara Keys, Tim Smith, and Donnie Fisher were present in person. 

Steve Stolipher; County Commission Liaison, and J Ware was present via ZOOM. 

Staff members present included Jennifer Brockman, Chief County Planner, Luke Seigfried, County 

Planner; Jonathan Saunders, County Engineer; Nathan Cochran, Prosecuting Attorney (via ZOOM); 

Jennilee Hartman, Zoning Clerk; and Colin Uhry, Planning & Zoning Clerk. 

Mr. Shepp called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm and confirmed a quorum was present. 

1. Approval of Meeting Minutes: September 10, September 17, and October 1, 2024 Meetings 

Mr. Seigfried provided the Planning Commission with a transcript regarding the portion of the 

September 17 meeting that the Commission had questioned at the last meeting. Mr. Shepp stated the 

minutes stand approved as presented.  

2. Request for postponement. None. 

The following items are open for public comment. 

3. Public Hearing: Final Plat Amendment to lift the single family restriction for a detached accessory 

dwelling unit for a family member. See Note #9 on Final Plat PB 25 PG 85A for restriction. 

Applicant/ Property Owners:  & . Property Location:  

Subdivision,   Ln, Shepherdstown, WV. Parcel ID: ; Size: 

3 ac; Zoning District: Rural (File#24-5-FPA). 

Ms. Brockman provided an overview of the staff report. 

Mr. , property owner, explained the nature of the request. 

The Planning Commission had no clarifying questions. 

Mr. Shepp opened the public hearing. No members of the public were signed up to speak. Mr. Shepp 

closed the public hearing. 

Mr. Howell moved to approve the request as presented. Mr. Fisher seconded the motion, which carried 

unanimously. 

4. Public Hearing: Waiver request from Section 20.201B of the Subdivision Regulations to reduce the 

required access easement width of  Lane from 50' to 40' and to allow more than five lots to 

access  Lane for a proposed two lot minor subdivision. Applicant: . Property 

Owners: . Property Location: Vacant Lot on the eastern side of  Lane, 

Kearneysville, WV. Parcel ID: ; Size: 6.5 acres; Zoning District: Rural (File #24-26-

PCW). 

Ms. Brockman provided an overview of the staff report. 

Mr. , relative to the property owner, explained the nature of the request. 

The Planning Commission had no clarifying questions. 

Mr. Shepp opened the public hearing. No members of the public were signed up to speak. Mr. Shepp 

closed the public hearing. 



Planning Commission Minutes 

October 8, 2024 

Page 2 of 3 

Mr. Louthan moved to approve the request as presented. Mr. Howell seconded the motion, which 

carried unanimously. 

5. Public Hearing: Variance request from Section 2.1B of the 1979 Subdivision Ordinance (parent to 

child exemption) to lift the single family restriction to allow for a detached Accessory Dwelling Unit 

(In-Law Suite) pursuant to Section 8.15A of the Zoning Ordinance. See Page #2 in DB  / PG  

for restriction. Applicant/Property Owners: . Property Location:  Lane, Summit 

Point, WV. Parcel ID: ; Size: 2.95 acres; Zoning District: Rural (File#24-3-PCV). 

Mr. Shepp recused himself from this Item due to a connection with the property. 

Ms. Brockman provided an overview of the staff report. 

Ms. , property owner, explained the nature of the request. 

Mr. Louthan made note the property crosses the West Virginia/ Virginia border and  may 

need approval from Clarke County, VA. The Planning Commission had no clarifying questions. 

Mr. Fisher moved to approve the request as presented. Mr. Smith seconded the motion, which carried 

unanimously. 

Mr. Shepp returned to the meeting room for the duration of the meeting. 

There is no public comment for the following items. 

6. Discussion and Possible Action Related to the Comprehensive Plan Update: Review of the draft 

2045 Comprehensive Plan 

Mr. Seigfried explained edits to the 2045 Comprehensive Plan that the Planning Commission requested 

during the October 1, 2024 meeting. Mr. Fisher requested that a legend be added to the Future Land 

Use map in the 2045 Comprehensive Plan, Mr. Seigfried said he would discuss the addition with GIS. 

Mr. Hefestay expressed concern over Objective 1.4, less emphasis on beauty in Jefferson County, 

concern over lack of compare and contrast between 2035 and 2045 Comprehensive Plans, and concern 

regarding the upcoming election season and members voted onto the County Commission. 

Mr. Seigfried addressed the concerns made by Mr. Hefestay. Mr. Hefestay moved to strike Objective 

1.4 from the 2045 Comprehensive Plan. Mr. Shepp called for a second, no second was found, and the 

motion died. 

Mr. Howell moved to recommend the 2045 Comprehensive Plan to the County Commission, Mr. 

Louthan seconded the motion, which carried seven (7) in support and two (2) in opposition, Mr. 

Hefestay and Ms. Keys. 

Ms. Keys moved to rescind the vote, allowing for more discussion regarding Objective 1.4. Mr. 

Cochran joins the meeting in person to discuss the legality of returning to the motion later in the 

meeting. 

[The motion to rescind and related discussion occurred after the Planning Commission moved to 

Agenda Item 9. Additional detail can be found in Agenda Item 9 below.]  

  



Planning Commission Minutes 

October 8, 2024 

Page 3 of 3 

 

7. Review and Approval: Planning Commission Calendar Year 2025 Meeting and Submission Dates 

Staff provided meeting and application deadline dates for the 2025 Planning Commission Calendar and 

pointed out specific dates requiring Planning Commission approval. 

Mr. Shepp moved to establish Monday, December 23rd as  the waiver application deadline for the 

Tuesday, January 14 2025 meeting. Mr. Louthan seconded, unanimous approval. 

Mr. Louthan moved to hold the November Planning Commission meeting on Tuesday, November 4, 

due to the Veteran’s Day holiday.  Mr. Shepp seconded the motion, which carried unanimously. 

8. Reports from Legal Counsel. None. 

9. Planner’s Memo. 

Mr. Seigfried asked Planning Commission to fillout self-evaluation forms. Mr. Uhry passed out the 

forms to Planning Commission members attending in person.  

Mr. Hefestay requested further discussion on Objective 1.4 and Mr. Cochran explained the process 

through Roberts Rules of Order to rescind a motion. Mr. Fisher moved to rescind the motion to send 

the Comprehensive Plan to the County Commission and Mr. Smith seconded. 

Ms. Keys moved to remove “…by principal permitted use and by conditional use” from the 

Comprehensive Plan. Mr. Louthan seconded the motion, which carried eight (8) in favor and one (1) in 

opposition, Mr. Hefestay. 

Mr. Fisher moved to send the 2045 Comprehensive Plan to the County Commission. Mr. Howell 

seconded the motion, which carried eight (8) in support and one (1) in opposition, Mr. Hefestay. 

Mr. Seigfried explained issues adding cellular assets to the Future Land Use map. 

10. President’s Report.  

Mr. Shepp requested presentation on ministerial vs adjudicatory authority  from Mr. Cochran, after 

New Year’s. 

11. Actionable Correspondence. 

None 

12. Non-Actionable Correspondence. 

a. 09/16/24:  

b. 09/26/24:  

c. 10/1/24:  

Mr. Howell motioned to adjourn the meeting at 7:54 pm. Mr. Louthan seconded the motion, which 

carried unanimously. 

These minutes were prepared by Colin Uhry, Planning & Zoning Clerk. 

 

 











Staff Report 
Jefferson County Planning Commission 

November 12, 2024 
 Concept Plan Public Workshop (PC File: 24-6-SP) 

Page 5 of 5 

b. Water and sewer utility permits from Berkeley County Public Service Water and Sewer Districts will be 
required in conjunction with the Site Plan.  

Prior to Site Plan approval, any state permits related to wells and groundwater extraction will be 
required to be submitted to the County for our files. 

3. Planning Commission Direction 
The Concept Plan Public Workshop allows for the Planning Commission and the general public to 
comment on the proposed plan before complete engineering design and cost are incurred.  The 
Subdivision and Land Development Regulations outline the procedure: 

1. The applicant makes a short presentation.   
2. Staff explains outside agency comments and whether the plan can meet the standards of the 

Zoning Ordinance.   
3. Public comment is solicited.   

Following the applicant’s presentation, staff’s explanation, and the solicitation of public comment, the 
Planning Commission shall provide direction to the applicant as required under Concept Plan Direction 
outlined in the Subdivision Regulations.  The Planning Commission has the option of providing this 
direction at the same meeting during which the Concept Plan public workshop takes place, or at a 
subsequent meeting that occurs within 14 days of the meeting at which the Concept Plan public 
workshop is closed.  
Section 24.121 of the Subdivision and Land Development Regulations outlines the direction to be 
provided to the applicant during a Minor Site Plan Concept Plan review: 

“The Planning Commission shall direct the preparation of a Site Plan subject to 
conditions to be addressed in the site plan application. The purpose of this review is to 
guide the developer so that when the site plan application is formally reviewed by the 
staff, there should not be a whole range of issues being raised for the first time. The 
developer shall cite conditions and demonstrate that they have been met or otherwise 
addressed.” 

It should be noted that the direction provided to the applicant in the Major Site Plan Concept Plan 
Public Workshop shall be applicable for a period of two years, with the provision that any amendments 
to the Subdivision and Land Development Regulations or the Zoning and Land Development Ordinance 
in the second year shall be applicable. 

 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
• Jefferson County Historic Landmarks Commission e-mail (11-5-24) 
• Berkeley County Public Service Sewer District (8-18-21) 
• Berkeley County Public Service Water District (5-28-24) 























24-6-SP -  Concept Plan Public Comment Index 
 

Page 1 of 4 

1) Public Comment_10-22-24 -
2) Public Comment_10-23-24 -
3)  Public Comment_10-23-24 -
4)  Public Comment_10-28-24 -
5)  Public Comment_10-30-24 -
6)  Public Comment_10-30-24 -
7)  Public Comment_10-30-24 -
8)  Public Comment_10-30-24 -
9)  Public Comment_10-30-24 -

10)  Public Comment_10-30-24 -
11)  Public Comment_10-30-24 -
12)  Public Comment_10-30-24 -
13) Public Comment_10-30-24 -
14)  Public Comment_10-30-24 -
15)  Public Comment_10-30-24 -
16)  Public Comment_10-30-24 -
17)  Public Comment_10-30-24 -
18)  Public Comment_10-30-24 -
19)  Public Comment_10-30-24 -
20)  Public Comment_10-30-24 -
21)  Public Comment_10-30-24 -
22)  Public Comment_10-30-24 -
23) Public Comment_10-30-24 -
24)  Public Comment_10-30-24 -
25)  Public Comment_10-30-24 -
26)  Public Comment_10-30-24 -
27)  Public Comment_10-30-24 -
28)  Public Comment_10-30-24 -
29) Public Comment_10-30-24 -
30)  Public Comment_10-30-24 -
31) Public Comment_10-30-24 -
32)  Public Comment_10-30-24 -
33)  Public Comment_10-30-24 -
34) Public Comment_10-30-24 –
35)  Public Comment_10-30-24 -
36)  Public Comment_10-30-24 -
37)  Public Comment_10-30-24 -
38)  Public Comment_10-30-24 -
39)  Public Comment_10-30-24 -
40)  Public Comment_10-30-24 -
41)  Public Comment_10-31-24 -
42)  Public Comment_10-31-24 -
43)  Public Comment_10-31-24 -











Staff Report 
Jefferson County Planning Commission Meeting 

November 12, 2024 

 Extension Waiver (File: 24-27-PCW) 

Page 2 of 2 

Summary of the Request:  

The applicant is requesting a 2-year extension on the Concept Plan direction period to prepare the 
required Preliminary Plat for the proposed 29 single-family residential development. The original 
Planning Commission approval of the  Concept Plan (File #  was given 
on November 15th, 2022 and the requested waiver would extend the approval period to November 15th, 
2026. Granting of this waiver would allow the Preliminary Plat to proceed through the standard review 
process rather than beginning over. This would allow the project to proceed and avoid duplication of 
work by both the County and applicant.  

On November 15th, 2022, the Planning Commission approved the Concept Plan for this proposed Major 
Residential Subdivision. The proposal consists of a resubdivision of nine (9) existing commercial lots 
within the  Industrial Park into twenty-nine (29) single-family lots. This project was proposed 
following a rezoning of the properties to the Residential-Light Industrial-Commercial (RLIC) zoning 
district on December 2nd, 2021.   
Section 24.112C of the Subdivision Regulations states that approval of a Concept Plan provides the 
developer with the direction to proceed to prepare a Preliminary Plat/Site Plan. The direction received in 
the Concept Plan Public Workshop is applicable for a period of two years. 

Waiver Requirements: 
Waivers from the minimum standards in these Regulations may be granted by the Planning Commission 
only when the Planning Commission finds that granting a waiver will be consistent with all of the 
following criteria:  

1) that the design of the project will provide public benefit in the form of reduction in County 
maintenance costs, greater open space, parkland consistent with the County parks plan, or benefits 
of a similar nature;  

2) that the waiver, if granted, will not adversely affect the public health, safety or welfare, or the rights 
of adjacent property owners or residents;  

3) that the waiver, if granted, will be in keeping with the intent and purpose of these Regulations; and  
4) That the waiver if granted will result in a project of better quality and/or character. Process and 

procedural waivers shall be reviewed and found consistent with the above criteria prior to 
approval. 

In the waiver application, the applicant referenced the existing Concept Plan to address the criteria. 

Staff Recommendation: 
Staff recommends granting the requested waiver with the provision that any amendments to the 
Subdivision Regulations or the Zoning Ordinance which occur within the two years that may impact the 
design of the proposed project be required as a part of the Preliminary Plat/Site Plan submittal. This 
waiver is for a time extension and not a change to the site layout or a waiver of any Subdivision 
Regulation standards. Providing an extension of two (2) years for the Sunnyside Residential 
development submittal would provide for the continuation of this development in accordance with the 
Concept Plan previously reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission. 
 







From: Planning Department
To:
Subject: RE: “  Major Subdivision”
Date: Monday, November 4, 2024 9:53:00 AM

Good morning,
 
This email is to confirm receipt of your submission. We will include your letter in the packet to the
Planning Commission for the November 12, 2024 meeting. This packet will be made available on the
County’s webpage by close of business on Friday, November 8, 2024.
 
Thank you and have a nice day.
 
Colin Uhry, Planning & Zoning Clerk
Office of Planning and Zoning
304-728-3228
 
 
From:  
Sent: Sunday, November 3, 2024 6:38 PM
To: Planning Department <PlanningDepartment@jeffersoncountywv.org>
Subject: “  Major Subdivision”
 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution
when opening attachments or on clicking links from unknown senders. 
To whom it my concern,
 
As an adjoining property to the proposed “  Major Subdivision” I deny the waiver
request from Section 24.112C listed on the Public Notice to extend the two year vesting period
to November 15, 2026. I do not support the extension for “  Major Subdivision” off
of  Road. 
 
Sincerely,  



Staff Report 
Jefferson County Planning Commission Meeting 

November 12, 2024 

 Opening Waiver (File: 24-28-PCW) 

Page 1 of 3 

Item #5: Waiver request from Section 20.203B of the Subdivision Regulations to allow the opening of 
the park property prior to processing a Concept Plan and a Site Plan and prior to initiating 
any improvements on the property. 

Owner:  

Applicant:  

Property Location & 
Information: 

Vacant Farm with preexisting structures on the northern side of  Road, 
Charles Town, WV; Parcel ID: ; Size: 82 acres;  

Zoning District: Rural 

 
Surrounding Zoning: North, East, South, and West: Rural 

Proposed Activity: Opening of a new county Park property prior to processing a Concept Plan and Site 
Plan and prior to initiating any improvements on the property 

History: No History 

Summary of the Request:  

The applicant is requesting a waiver from Section 20.203B of the Subdivision Regulations to allow the 
opening of the park property prior to processing a Concept Plan and a Site Plan and prior to initiating 
any improvements on the property. This Site Plan waiver will allow residents of Jefferson County to 
immediately enjoy passive recreation on a limited basis. 

Because the property is zoned Rural and has been purchased by the , the subject parcel has the 
right to create a public park intended for recreation. This waiver request is to expedite the opening of the 
Park and allow the public to have access to the Park prior to any improvements on the property. No 
improvements will occur until a Concept Plan and Site Plan have been approved. 



Staff Report 
Jefferson County Planning Commission Meeting 

November 12, 2024 

 Opening Waiver (File: 24-28-PCW) 

Page 2 of 3 

The request is to further establish and develop  for the citizens and tourists of Jefferson 
County. While the end goal is to include development as seen in the sketch, this first phase which is the 
subject of this waiver will only be concerned with passive recreation and birdwatching. 

Waiver Requirements: 
The applicant provided a response to the requirements found in “Division 24.300 Waivers” of the 
Subdivision Regulations in the waiver application. Waivers from the minimum standards in these 
Regulations may be granted by the Planning Commission only when the Planning Commission finds 
that granting a waiver will be consistent with all of the following criteria:  

1) that the design of the project will provide public benefit in the form of reduction in County 
maintenance costs, greater open space, parkland consistent with the County parks plan, or benefits 
of a similar nature;  

2) that the waiver, if granted, will not adversely affect the public health, safety or welfare, or the rights 
of adjacent property owners or residents;  

3) that the waiver, if granted, will be in keeping with the intent and purpose of these Regulations; and  

Applicant’s Sketch 



Staff Report 
Jefferson County Planning Commission Meeting 

November 12, 2024 

 Opening Waiver (File: 24-28-PCW) 

Page 3 of 3 

4) That the waiver if granted will result in a project of better quality and/or character. Process and 
procedural waivers shall be reviewed and found consistent with the above criteria prior to 
approval. 

Staff Recommendation: 
Staff believes that it is reasonable to allow the  to proceed with the opening of the expansion of 

 exclusively for the passive recreation opportunities mentioned by the applicant. This 
waiver is from requiring a Concept Plan and a Site Plan to develop Phase One only. A Concept Plan and 
a Site Plan are required for all other Phases and will include Phase One when submitted.  



24-28-PCW
11/12/2024
10-21-2024
$0
CAU







Staff Report 
Jefferson County Planning Commission Meeting 

November 12, 2024 

 ( ) Rezoning Request (24-2-Z) 

Page 1 of 5 

Item # 6: Discussion and Action on the  Zoning Map Request: Planning Commission 
review and recommendation to the County Commission regarding whether the petition for a Zoning 
Map Amendment to rezone the 127+/- acre  Property from Rural(R) to Residential 
Growth (RG) is consistent with the 2035 Comprehensive Plan.  

Property Owner/ 
Applicant:  

Consultant: / Attn:  

Parcel Information: 

Three properties south of the  Rd. &  Rd. intersection 
Tax District:  ( ), Map:  Parcels:  &   

Acreage: 119.05 ac., 5.35 ac. & 2 ac.(126.4 ac. by Tax Map, 127.6 ac. by 
Deed) Zoning District: Rural

Surrounding Properties: North, South, East: Rural(R) West: Residential Growth (RG) 
Current Use: Farm use / Residences 
Proposed Request To rezone the total 127+/- acres from Rural to Residential Growth (RG) 
Planning Commission 
Responsibility: 

To advise the County Commission whether the requested Zoning Map Amendment 
is consistent with the Envision Jefferson 2035 Comprehensive Plan 

Staff Finding: Staff finds that request is consistent with the Envision Jefferson 2035 
Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Guide  







Staff Report 
Jefferson County Planning Commission Meeting 

November 12, 2024 

 ( ) Rezoning Request (24-2-Z) 

Page 4 of 5 

Possible Urban Development” was given. Appendix G of the Plan does not provide a detailed explanation 
of the classification.  
Since the landowner intends to develop under County standards, the properties are treated as being in a 
PGA without using a land use classification found in Appendix G of the Plan.  

3. Proposed Zoning District – Residential Growth (RG) 
The purpose of the Residential Growth (RG) District (Section 5.4 of the Zoning Ordinance) is “to provide 
for a variety of residential uses and densities which can be supported by central or public water and sewer 
and adequate roadways and services” (complete description attached). 
As noted previously, the subject parcel is designated as Rural/Agricultural for Possible Urban 
Development on the Future Land Use Guide of the 2035 Plan.  

Staff Discussion and Recommendation 
This property has been zoned Rural since zoning went into to effect in 1988. Two of the subject parcels were 
created as separate residences by land grant from the  property.  is a Category I 
historic landmark and has been on the National Register since 1994. When processing any potential 
developments on the property the developer must comply with the Zoning Ordinance requirements related to 
historic sites. The Envision Jefferson 2035 Plan recommendations focus on balancing accessibility and 
awareness of such historic sites with the property rights of the landowners of the historic sites. It also 
promotes the creation and use of voluntary design guidelines to reflect a historic site’s nature and context 
should development occur (p. 121). As such, staff finds that that the historic nature of Media Farm is not 
relevant to Planning Commission’s recommendation regarding the proposed zoning map amendment.  
The 2035 Plan was the first Jefferson County Comprehensive Plan to include a Future Land Use Map/Guide, 
which is intended to be a tool to provide a visual definition of future growth and areas where potential owner 
initiated zoning map amendments (rezoning requests) might occur within the timeframe of the Plan. The 2035 
Plan stated that “by creating a Future Land Use Map/Guide, a community provides clarification for property 
owners related to their potential development on their site. The review of all zoning map amendment requests 
shall include consideration of all of the recommendations created as part of this Plan. All zoning map 
amendments shall be in conformance with the Future Land Use Guide and the recommendations of this 
Plan.”(pp. 16-17).  
The Plan does not initiate any zoning map amendments and only provides recommendations to guide 
development including identifying Preferred Growth Areas.   
Based on these recommendations of the 2035 Plan related to the Future Land Use Map/Guide and text, staff 
finds that the proposed Residential Growth (RG) zoning category for the 127+/- acres included in this 
application is consistent with the Envision Jefferson 2035 Comprehensive Plan.  

Planning Commission Action Required  
Article 12 of the Zoning Ordinance and the relevant sections of WV State Code requires the County 
Commission to refer rezoning petitions to the Planning Commission for their review and recommendation as 
to whether the amendment is consistent with the adopted Comprehensive Plan. Such recommendation is 
required to be sent to the County Commission prior to the County Commission’s public hearing which shall be 
held within 60 days of the date the petition is presented. 
The petition was presented to the County Commission on October 17, 2024 and the required Public Hearing 
has been scheduled for December 5, 2024 at a time to be determined. Therefore, the Planning Commission is 
required to review this application and make a recommendation to the County Commission prior to this 
Hearing. 



Staff Report 
Jefferson County Planning Commission Meeting 

November 12, 2024 

 ( ) Rezoning Request (24-2-Z) 

Page 5 of 5 

Attachments: 
• Section 5.4 of the Zoning Ordinance - Residential Growth (RG) 
• Appendix C of the Zoning Ordinance 
• EJ 2035 FLU Ranson UGB Guide 



73 of 136 

ARTICLE 5: DISTRICT ESTABLISHMENT; ZONING MAPS; DISTRICT BOUNDARIES; 

DISTRICT REGULATIONS 

Section 5.1 Establishment of Districts1 

For the purpose of this Ordinance, all land within the County, exclusive of the incorporated towns, is hereby 

designated as one of the following zoning districts: 

RG Residential Growth District 

I-C Industrial-Commercial District 

R Rural (Agricultural) District 

R-LI-C Residential-Light Industrial-Commercial District 

V Village District23 

NC Neighborhood Commercial27 

GC General Commercial27 

HC Highway Commercial27 

LI Light Industrial27 

MI Major Industrial27 

PND Planned Neighborhood Development27 

OC Office / Commercial Mixed-Use27 

Section 5.2 Boundaries of Districts 

Unless otherwise indicated on the zoning district maps, the boundary lines of the districts shall follow lot lines, 

centerlines of streets, alleys, corporate limit lines, or centerlines of waterways as existing at the time of the 

adoption of this Ordinance. 

Section 5.3 District Maps 

The districts shall be of the size and shape shown on the Jefferson County Zoning Maps and shall hereby be 

made a part of this ordinance. A copy of the said maps shall be signed by the County Commissioners upon the 

adoption of these regulations and recorded within the Courthouse. 

The Jefferson County zoning layer is parcel-based, maintained in a Geographic Information System (GIS), and 

shall be the basis for the County’s official zoning map. Within 30 days of final County Commission action on a 

zoning map amendment, GIS/Addressing staff will update the digital zoning layer and make the new data 

available online.23 

On an annual basis, in December, and within 30 days of final County Commission action on a zoning map 

amendment, a new zoning map will be printed which includes the most up to date base layer data, all approved 

zoning designations since the last printed map, and an effective date, certified by the President of the County 

Commission, filed with the County Clerk’s office, and a copy provided to the Planning Commission. This 

annual map update shall not require a public hearing and such certification shall occur administratively.23  

Section 5.4 Residential Growth (RG) District 

The Residential Growth District is intended to provide for a variety of residential uses and densities which can 

be supported by central or public water and sewer and adequate roadways and services. This district 

encourages areas of commercial growth proposed as an appropriate and compatible integrated part of a 

residential development in conformance with Section 5.4C of this Ordinance.32  

The following regulations govern development within the Residential Growth District. 



74 of 136 

A. Principal Permitted and Conditional Uses23,27, 32 

1. Uses that are permitted, conditional, and not permitted in this district shall be as indicated in 

Appendix C, Principal Permitted and Conditional Uses Table.27, 32 

2. Uses shown as conditional uses (CU) for this district in Appendix C, Principal Permitted and 

Conditional Uses Table shall be subject to review and approval by the Board of Zoning Appeals in 

accordance with Section 6.3 of this Ordinance. 27, 32 

B. Minimum Lot Area, Height, and Yard Requirements 

1. Setbacks, height, and other site development standards shall be as indicated in Appendix A, 

Residential Site Development Standards, and Appendix B, Non-Residential Site Development 

Standards, except as provided elsewhere in this Ordinance. The minimum lot area requirements are 

based on the availability of central or public water and sewer facilities and West Virginia Board of 

Health regulations.23, 27 

2. When computing the dwelling unit yield for a parcel of land, use the total area of parcel minus (1) 

lands contained in a wetland and (2) hillside lands to be retained in a natural, undisturbed condition 

as provided for in the Jefferson County Subdivision and Land Development Regulations. The 

balance square footage between the ADU (Area per Dwelling Unit) and the MLA (Minimum Lot 

Area) shall not include land set aside in a Sensitive Natural Area, Buffer to a Sensitive Natural 

Area, land qualifying as Hillside development or a 100 Year Flood Plain.5,23, 27 

3. All detached accessory structures under 144 square feet in size shall have a setback of 6’.27 

C. Commercial Services in Residential Developments23 

1. Commercial services may be included in a residential development providing the commercial uses 

are intended to serve the residential community proposed and shall relate well to residential areas in 

terms of pedestrian and vehicular circulation. 

2. The gross area for commercial uses shall not exceed 5 acres or 10 percent of the gross tract area, 

whichever is less. 

3. Commercial uses shall not be built or established prior to the residential development unless built in 

phases consistent with phasing of the residential construction. 

4. These uses shall be located within the interior of the project. 

5. Commercial uses shall be subject to the Conditional Use Permit process as outlined in Section 6.3 

of this Ordinance. Any proposed commercial use that is served from a road that is proposed to be 

located on the perimeter of the project or on a State Road shall be required to be considered as a 

part of the Conditional Use Public Hearing process.5, 32 

D. Standards for Commercial Uses23, 32 

1. Commercial uses are subject to the following access requirements:32 

a. Such uses will not use adjacent residential roads for through traffic; and 

b. Will connect to principal and major arterial highways as directly as feasible considering access 

restrictions.5 

2. Commercial uses are subject to the requirements of Section 5.6D and the requirements for such 

standards in Article 8.32 































































Jefferson County, West Virginia 
Department of Engineering, Planning, and Zoning 

Office of Planning and Zoning 
116 East Washington Street, 2nd Floor, P.O. Box 716 

Charles Town, WV 25414 

 
Email: planningdepartment@jeffersoncountywv.org Phone: (304) 728-3228 

MEMO 

TO: Planning Commission 

FROM: Jennifer M. Brockman, AICP, Chief County Planner/Acting Zoning Administrator 

DATE: November 12, 2024  

RE: Solar Energy Facility Text Discussion 

 

The 3-year history of the development of the current Solar Energy Facility language found in Section 

8.20 of the Jefferson County Zoning and Land Development Ordinance is detailed in the following 

pages. In December 2023, the County Commission expressed concern about the quality and quantity of 

Solar Facilities that have been approved and requested that the Planning Commission review Section 

8.20 of the Zoning Ordinance and provide recommended edits based on the projects submitted thus far. 

There are three possible amendments that the Planning Commission may want to consider discussed 

below. It should be noted that unless any of the currently approved five Solar Facilities expire, the solar 

projects that have already obtained approvals under the current regulations would be grandfathered and 

permitted to continue under the current Zoning Ordinance requirements. Any new regulations or 

standards adopted in the future would apply only to new proposals. 

1) Conditional Use Permits 

The original petition and text recommendation proposed requiring all proposed Solar Facilities to 

process as Conditional Uses rather than Principal Permitted Uses. Four of the five that have been 

approved have had at least a portion of the project process as a Conditional Use and any conditions 

placed on the approval by the BZA is being incorporated into the Concept Plan. 

2) Site Plan Requirement  

One significant change that would give the County more authority related to the construction of the 

Solar Facilities would be to amend Section 8.20 of the Zoning Ordinance to require Solar Energy 

Facilities to process a Site Plan, in addition to the currently required Concept Plan. A Site Plan 

requirement could include a Public Hearing and would require posting a construction bond for site 

improvements such as landscaping and storm water management which would give the County more 

authority over ensuring the proposed design elements are constructed per the plans. 

3) Setback/Buffer/Landscaping 

One of the issues that the Planning Commission and staff have received the most concern about 

relates the relationship between the solar panels and neighboring residential developments. 

Consideration of an increase in the landscape buffer/ screening and setbacks could address these 

concerns and provide more protection to the nearby existing residential developments. 

  



The history of the current Solar Energy Facility language found in  

Section 8.20 of the Jefferson County Zoning and Land Development Ordinance: 

ZTA19-03: 

 12-10-19: Landowner petition requesting that the Planning Commission consider a proposed text 

amendment to the Zoning Ordinance to create a process to allow Solar Farms in the Rural Zoning 

District only as a Conditional Use. 

 02-11-20: The PC appointed a subcommittee and directed the subcommittee to draft a text 

amendment to allow solar energy facilities as a Principal Permitted Use. The Planning Commission 

specifically directed the committee to develop requirements to address fencing, screening, and 

decommissioning of solar energy facilities. 

 06-02-20: PC Public Hearing on ZTA19-03 including language to allow solar energy facilities as a 

Principal Permitted Use in multiple Zoning Categories and requiring a Concept Plan, Zoning 

Certificate, Building Permits, and Decommissioning Plan. 

 06-23-20: PC set recommended draft ZTA19-03 text amendment to CC for their consideration. 

 09-11-20: CC Public Hearing on recommended version of ZTA19-03 text amendment. 

 10-01-20: CC approved ZTA19-03 text amendment with an effective date of November 16, 2020. 

[11-14-20 Temporary Restraining Order filed; 

12-10-20 Agreed Order vacating ZTA 19-03 and directing reconsideration by the PC (vacated by 

vote of the County Commission.)] 

 02-09-21: PC held Public Hearing to received public input on ZTA19-03. The PC closed the hearing 

and called a special meeting for 02-23-21 to allow additional time to review the written comments 

submitted. 

 02-23-21: PC determined that allowing solar facilities as a principal permitted use was consistent 

with the Comprehensive Plan and noted that if there were any conflicts with the Plan, there had been 

changes of a social nature, which support alternative energy. The PC directed Legal Counsel to draft 

Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law for their review during the March meeting. 

 03-09-21: PC made a recommendation to the CC that the proposed text amendment is consistent 

with the Comp Plan, and noted that if there were any conflicts with the Plan, that there had been 

changes of a social nature, which support alternative energy. 

 03-18-21: CC received the Planning Commission’s recommendation draft ZTA19-03 and scheduled 

a Public Hearing for April 12, 2021 @ 6:00 PM. 

 04-12-21: CC held PH on ZTA19-03 and voted to approve the text amendment with minor edits 

based on public input. 

 08-16-21: Judge McLaughlin issued a decision on Civil Case #CC-19-2021-C-33 which overturned 

Zoning Text Amendment ZTA19-03. 

Envision Jefferson Comprehensive Plan Amendment: 

 09/02/21: CC directed the PC to develop an amendment to the Comprehensive Plan to clarify that 

solar facilities be recognized as a principal permitted use throughout the rural and residential zoning 

districts in accordance with WV Code 8A-3-11. 

 Comp Plan Amendment Discussions: 9/28/21 Workshop; 10/5/21 Work Session; 10/12/21 

discussion 

 12/7/21: PC Comprehensive Plan Solar Facility Text Amendment Public Hearing 

 12/14/21: PC voted to forward recommended Comp Plan text amendment re: solar facilities in the 

rural and residential districts to County Commission. 



 02/03/22: CC Comprehensive Plan Solar Facility Text Amendment Public Hearing 

 04/05/22: CC recommended a final revision to the draft amendment to the Envision Jefferson 2035 

Comprehensive Plan. Pursuant to State Code, their revised draft was forwarded to the Planning 

Commission for final approval. 

 04/12/22: PC formally accepted the CC’s recommended revisions to the draft amendment, which 

included the following revision to the Infrastructure and Technology Recommendations on Page 93 

of the Comprehensive Plan: 

“Encourage public entities to utilize alternative and renewable energy sources for a variety 

of energy needs, specifically Solar Energy Facilities in areas inside of the Urban Growth 

Boundary and the Preferred Growth Area as a Principal Permitted Use, and outside of the 

Urban Growth Boundary and the Preferred Growth Area, by the Conditional Use Process 

(Recommendation 8).” 

Following their approval to accept the proposed amendment to the Comprehensive Plan, the Planning 

Commission directed Staff to revise the previous text amendment to the Zoning Ordinance to 

incorporate provisions in accordance with the Comprehensive Plan, as amended. 

ZTA22-01: 

 04/19/22: PC Special Meeting to review the draft of the text amendment to the Zoning Ordinance  

(File ZTA22-01).  

 05/17/22: PC Public Hearing on the draft ZTA22-01. 

o The draft amendment included provisions to allow Solar Energy Facilities to process as a 

Permitted Use on parcels located within the Urban Growth Boundary and Preferred Growth Area 

as identified on the Future Land Use Guide in the Envision Jefferson 2035 Comprehensive Plan. 

The amendment also includes provisions to allow Solar Energy Facilities to process as a 

Conditional Use on parcels located outside of the Urban Growth Boundary and Preferred Growth 

Area. 

o ZTA22-01 proposed revisions to Article 2, Section 2.2, Terms Defined; Article 8, Supplemental 

Use Regulations, [creation of new Section 8.20, Solar Energy Facilities]; and Appendix C, 

Principal Permitted and Conditional Uses Table. 

o PC recommended the proposed text to the CC for their review and approval. 

 06/09/22: CC Public Hearing on the recommended draft text amendment ZTA22-01. Motion to 

approve did not pass. 

 06/16/22: CC voted to reconsider ZTA22-01 which was approved as presented at the Public Hearing, 

effective immediately. 

 

[07/07/23: CC by vote of 2-1 repealed the Solar Energy Facility provisions of the Zoning Ordinance 

without the required public hearing process. 

12/21/23: Moved to rescind action of CC on 7/7/23 regarding the Solar Text Amendment and further 

requested that the PC review Section 8.20 of the Zoning Ordinance and provide recommended edits 

based on the projects submitted thus far.] 

 

 

  



Section 8.20 Solar Energy Facilities 

Solar Energy Facilities shall process as a Principal Permitted Use in areas inside of the Urban Growth 

Boundary and the Preferred Growth Area as delineated on the Future Land Use Guide in the 

Comprehensive Plan. Solar Energy Facilities shall process as a Conditional Use in areas outside of the 

Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) and Preferred Growth Area (PGA). 

All projects shall process a Concept Plan in accordance with the requirements listed below under 

Subsection B. For projects that require processing a Conditional Use Permit, a Concept Plan shall 

process subsequent to the Board of Zoning Appeals approval. 

For projects that will occur across parcels located both inside and outside the County’s UGB/PGA areas, 

an applicant may choose to process in two phases, with the first phase addressing the parcels located 

within the UGB/PGA areas as a Principal Permitted Use and the second phase processing a Conditional 

Use Permit to allow the Board to evaluate compatibility of the second the phase outside of the 

UGB/PGA areas. Should the Board issue a Conditional Use Permit, a Concept Plan shall process and 

shall include an exhibit depicting the full-buildout of the entire Solar Energy Facility project. 

A Pre-Proposal Conference is recommended for all solar projects, pursuant to the Jefferson County 

Subdivision and Land Development Regulations. 

A. Process for Solar Energy Facilities as a Conditional Use 

1. Projects which will occur on properties located outside of the UGB/PGA areas as delineated on the 

Future Land Use Guide shall process a Conditional Use in accordance with Article 6. 

2. In addition to the criteria established in Article 6, the following exhibits shall be included with the 

Conditional Use Permit application for the Board’s evaluation: 

a. Submit a sketch depicting the location of the proposed project and delineate the distance of the 

panels from the external property lines. 

b. Submit a brief description of the timeline of the lease or operating plan, and an overview of the 

plan for removal of the solar energy facility. The decommissioning plan and bond shall be in 

accordance with the West Virginia Department of Environmental Protection (WVDEP), pursuant 

to WV State Code §22-32-1, et. sec. or its successor. 

3. Should the Board issue a Conditional Use Permit, the applicant shall proceed with application for a 

Concept Plan, pursuant to the criteria listed below under subsection B. 

B. Process for Solar Energy Facilities as a Principal Permitted Use 

1. A Concept Plan, pursuant to the Minor Site Development Concept Plan standards established in 

the Jefferson County Subdivision and Land Development Regulations is required; except that after 

the Planning Commission direction is given, the next steps are Application for a Zoning 

Certificate and Building Permit. In addition to the Concept Plan requirements outlined in the 

Subdivision Regulations, the Concept Plan shall also include the following criteria: 

a. Property or Properties Location; 

b. Access Points; 

c. Anticipated location of all proposed components of the Solar Energy Facility. Each proposed 

solar panel is not required to be shown on the Concept Plan, if compliance with setbacks can be 

established by what is depicted on the Concept Plan; and 

d. Landscaping, Buffering, Ground Cover Plan, and Fencing. The landscaping plan shall include a 

note stating, “It will be the responsibility of the landowner to replace any trees, shrubs, or 

vegetation that die.” 

If the project is to be completed in phases, the Concept Plan shall reflect phasing of the project. 



2. Decommissioning Outline 

a. A narrative outlining the decommissioning of the Solar Energy Facility shall be included with 

the Concept Plan. This narrative shall include a description of the timeline of the lease or 

operating plan, and a general plan for removal of the Solar Energy Facility. 

b. The company shall provide to the Department of Engineering, Planning, and Zoning proof of 

application for a decommissioning plan and bond when such application is filed with the WVDEP 

as required by WV State Code §22-32-1, et. sec. or its successor. 

c. Staff shall be notified by certified mail at least 60 days in advance of the intended 

decommissioning of the Solar Energy Facility. Staff will place the notice on the next regularly 

scheduled Planning Commission meeting under “non-actionable correspondence”. 

d. Failure of the Lessee or Property Owner to meet and/or comply with the decommissioning plan 

as approved by the WVDEP may result in legal action pursuant to Article 3, Section 3.3 of this 

Ordinance and/or any applicable State Law. 

C. Setbacks, Landscaping, and Buffer Standards for a Solar Energy Facility 

1. Multiple adjacent properties under the same ownership or lease by the same company shall be 

considered one property for the purpose of these regulations. Internal boundary lines on adjacent 

properties under the same ownership or lease by the same company are not subject to the setbacks or 

buffer requirements provided below. 

2. Setbacks 

a. Solar Panels 

i. Front, Side, and Rear Setbacks shall be 100 feet from all external/perimeter property lines 

and from the edge of the State ROW or Easement of any State Road. 

ii. The above referenced setback may be decreased to 50 feet provided it includes a six foot 

high opaque buffer within the setback area comprised of two rows of evergreen trees that are 

six feet tall at the time of planting or a solid fence. Alternatively, a 50 foot strip of existing, 

mature woodlands may be allowed in lieu of a planted buffer or fence if documentation is 

submitted documenting how the existing mature woodlands complies with the required buffer 

standard. 

iii. Solar panels and accessory components may be located on a common side or rear lot line of 

contiguous property owned by the same entity. 

b. Accessory components, excluding solar panels and underground utilities. 

i. Front, side, and rear setbacks shall be 25 feet from all external/perimeter property lines and 

from the edge of the State ROW or Easement of any State Road. 

3. Landscaping and Buffer Standards 

a. Solar Panels that are located within 200 feet of any residence, Category 1 Historic Resource, 

Institution for Human Care, Church, or similar use or structure as determined by the Zoning 

Administrator, shall provide a 20 foot wide buffer along common property lines. The buffer shall 

be provided anywhere within the 200 foot radius from the structures/uses herein and is not 

required to be provided along the entire length of the common property line. 

b. The buffer screen may be either vegetative or opaque fencing and may be placed anywhere 

within the buffer area. No structures, materials, or vehicular parking shall be permitted within the 

side and rear yard buffers. Existing, natural vegetation may be used in lieu of a planted buffer if 

documentation is submitted to the Zoning Administrator verifying how the existing natural 

vegetation complies with the required buffer standard. 

c. Accessory Components (excluding solar panels) that are located within 200 feet of any 

residence, Category 1 Historic Resource, Institution for Human Care, Church, or similar use as 

determined by the Zoning Administrator, shall comply with the commercial provisions of Section 



4.11, with the exception that the Zoning Administrator can allow the use of existing, natural 

vegetation as appropriate to achieve the intent of the required buffering. 

4. Security and Access 

a. A security fence with secured gates shall be erected around the operating areas of the Solar 

Energy Facility with a minimum height of six feet and a maximum height of ten feet. 

i. Arrangements shall be made with the appropriate Fire Department for Access. A letter 

documenting approval of access from the Fire Department shall be provided with the Zoning 

Certificate application. The Fire Department shall respond within 15 days of the date of the 

letter. If no response is provided, the Fire Department shall be deemed by this Ordinance to 

have approved the access. 

ii. Upon three business days’ notice by the Department of Engineering, Planning, and Zoning, 

access shall be provided to Staff. 

D. A Zoning Certificate based on an approved Concept Plan is required prior to initiating any use 

regarding Solar Energy Facilities. 

In addition to the standards found in Section 8.20, any Zoning Certificate regarding Solar Energy 

Facilities shall be issued conditioned on all other State Regulations and approvals being granted, 

including, but not limited to, the WV Public Service Commission, WVDEP applicable NPDES  

Permits and Decommissioning Bonds, Fire Marshal approval, Building Permits through the 

Department of Engineering, Planning, and Zoning, and approval of the Stormwater Management 

Report pursuant to the Jefferson County Stormwater Management Ordinance. 

E. Stormwater Management 

Stormwater Management shall be required in accordance with the Jefferson County Stormwater 

Management Ordinance. Solar Energy Facilities may be exempt from providing stormwater 

management if the conditions for granting exemption under Article I.D.2.h of the Stormwater 

Management Ordinance are satisfied. 

F. General Requirements 

1. Design, construction, and installation of the Solar Energy Facility shall conform to applicable 

industry standards, including those of the American National Standards Institute (ANSI), 

Underwriters Laboratories (UL), the American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM) or other 

similar certifying organizations and shall comply with the West Virginia Fire and Building Codes, 

including compliance with the Jefferson County Building Code. 

2. Prior to commencing the transmission of electricity, the Solar Energy Facility shall provide 

documentation evidencing an interconnection agreement or similar agreement with the applicable 

public utility or approved entity in accordance with applicable law. 

3. Generation of electrical power shall be limited to photovoltaic panels, provided that any on-site 

buildings may utilize integrated photovoltaic building materials. 

4. Solvents necessary for the cleaning of the Solar Panels shall be biodegradable. 

5. Internal wiring, excluding that which is on or between the Solar Arrays, connected to substations 

or between Solar Panels, shall be located underground, except where necessary to mitigate impact to 

environmental and/or terrain features. 

6. Onsight lighting shall be the minimum necessary for security and onsite management and 

maintenance and shall comply with the standards outlined in the Subdivision Regulations. 

7. Photovoltaic Panels shall use antireflective glass that is designed to absorb rather than reflect light. 

8. Ground Cover comprised of natural vegetation is required. Ground cover that uses native or 

naturalized perennial vegetation and that provides foraging habitat that is beneficial for songbirds, 

gamebirds, and pollinators is encouraged but not required. 



9. Collocation of other agricultural activities such as small market hand-picked crops, grazing, and 

apiary activities are permitted and encouraged. 

10. No signage or advertising is permitted on the Solar Energy Facility other than an identifying sign 

at the entrance of the Facility that shall be approved by the Zoning Administrator in accordance with 

Article 10. All other signage must be approved by Special Exception by the Board of Zoning 

Appeals. 

11. Solar Energy Facilities shall comply with Article 8, Section 8.9 of this Ordinance. 

12. The Solar Energy Facility Use is not considered abandoned until such time it is Decommissioned. 

13. Damaged or unusable panels shall be repaired, replaced, or removed within 60 days from 

discovery of damage; provided, however, longer periods may be approved by the County Engineer 

due to extenuating circumstances. 

 



Draft 10/28/2024 
 

Jefferson County, West Virginia 
Department of Engineering, Planning, and Zoning 

Office of Planning and Zoning 
116 East Washington Street, 2nd Floor 

Charles Town, WV 25414 

Email: planningdepartment@jeffersoncountywv.org Phone: (304) 728-3228 

Budget Memo 
November 12, 2024 Planning Commission Meeting 

Date of Memo: November 12, 2024 

Pursuant to WV State Code §8A-2-11(13), The Planning Commission shall “Prepare and submit an 
annual budget to the appropriate governing body.” 

The County will soon be working on the budget for fiscal year 2026. Each Department is tasked with 
preparing a budget for their needs. The Planning Commission has a role in preparing for the annual 
budget by identifying special projects and/or studies that may need to be completed as part of their 
work plan and/or to make recommendations in support of staffing needs identified by the 
Department. The compensation package of the five full time Planning and Zoning staff members are 
outside of the scope of this memo.  

With the anticipated adoption of the 2045 Comprehensive Plan prior to FY 2026, two line items 
can have funds moved to new priorities. Principally, the recommended 2045 Comprehensive Plan 
update identifies several special projects and priorities, including the rewrite of the Subdivision and 
Zoning Ordinances. Part of the budget requests included are for additional part time staff to help 
facilitate the Action Items from the updated 2045 Comprehensive Plan (once adopted) related to 
updating the County's Ordinances. Additional small increases are for ongoing staff training and 
professional development. As part of the FY 2025 budget, the land development fee schedule was 
updated and the current fees are included as an attachment to this memo. 

The purpose of this memo and presentation at the 11/12/2024 Planning Commission meeting is 
for Planning Commissioners to review the proposed FY 2026 budget memo, prioritize projects 
that may require funding, and provide staff direction for potential changes. 

Summary of Planning and Zoning Specific Budget Items 
Object Code Line Items Current 

FY 2025 
Requested 
FY 2026 

Budget Changes 

410802 Extra Help/Part Time 5,000 33,000 +28,000
421100 Telephone 845 0 -845
421400 Travel 775 1050 +275
422000 Ads/Legal Publication 3000 3000 0 
422100 Training&Education 850 950 +100
422200 Dues&Subscriptions 400 800 +400
423000-PLN Contracted Services 11,000 5,000 -6,000
434102-PLN Materials&Supplies 15,900 1,900 -14,000

Total 37,770 45,700 +7,930



Draft 10/28/2024 
 

 
 
 
For the FY 2026 budget the Office of Planning and Zoning is asking to reallocate existing funding 
priorities and requesting an additional $7,930 to implement Action Items in the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Attachments: 

• Excerpt from State Code 
• Land Development Fee Schedule 



Jefferson County, West Virginia 
Department of Engineering, Planning, and Zoning 

Office of Planning and Zoning 
116 East Washington Street, 2nd Floor 

Charles Town, WV 25414 
Email: planningdepartment@jeffersoncountywv.org Phone: (304) 728-3228 
Email:  zoning@jeffersoncountywv.org Fax: (304) 728-8126 

1st Quarter Report for Planning and Zoning 
FY 2025 (July 1, 2024 – September 30, 2024) 

Attached is an electronically generated report of all applications submitted and reviewed within the 1st 
Quarter of FY2025. This data is being provided as a part of the 1st Quarter Report from the Planning 
Commission and Offices of Planning and Zoning to the County Commission. The items below reflect 
actions of the Planning Commission and Board of Zoning Appeals in this same time period and related 
meetings attended by Planning and Zoning staff. 

PLANNING COMMISSION ITEMS 

Planning Commission Meetings: 6 Meetings 

Comprehensive Plan Work Sessions: 2 Work Sessions 

Comprehensive Plan Public Hearing: 1 Public Hearing 

Comp Plan Special PC Meeting: 1 Special Meeting 

Subdivision Regulations Text Amendments none this quarter 

Zoning Ordinance Text Amendments none this quarter 

Zoning Map Amendments/Rezoning none this quarter 

Concept Plan Public Workshops 1 

#24-5-SP Concept Plan for the  Brewpub for a Minor Site Development project that 
contains more than 5,000 square feet of gross floor area (GFA). The proposal includes 
construction of a new structure to be used as a brewpub, a pavilion, and association 
parking. 
Property Owner/Applicant: , , , and  

 
Property Location:  Blvd, Charles Town, WV; 
Size: 4.70 acres; Zoning District: Industrial-Commercial.  
Public Workshop 07/09/22; PC approved a motion to approve the Concept Plan as 
presented.  



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) ITEMS 

Board of Zoning Appeals Meetings:  3 meetings 

Zoning Appeal of Administrative Application:    none this quarter 

PLANNING & ZONING STAFF ITEMS 

Pre-Proposal Conference (PPC) Meetings: 20 Total (14 Subdivision & 6 Site Plan) 

Information Request Forms (IRFs) -- general inquiries from the public: 33 Total 

Zoning and Land Development Fees Collected: $ 82,160.04 

Regional Transportation Planning Meetings 

Eastern Panhandle Transit Authority (EPTA) Board Meetings 07/15/24, 
08/19/24, 09/16/24 

EPTA Committee Meetings 08/28/24 

Hagerstown Eastern Panhandle Metropolitan Planning Organization (HEPMPO) 
Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) Meetings 08/21/24 

West Virginia Infrastructure Hub team Workshop 8/1/24 

Local and Regional Planning Meetings (all remote) 

Town Run Watershed Meeting 08/29/24 

WV APA Legislative Committee 7/19/24, 8/2/24, 
9/6/24 

WV APA Biannual Chapter Meeting 9/10/24 

WV APA Professional Development Committee 9/25/24 



Type Project Number Creation Date Owner Name Location Status Description

24-7-CUP 9/23/2024 Open

Request for a Conditional Use Permit to expand 
 business operations. 

The applicant is proposing to expand an existing 
emergency vehicle outfitting and retrofitting 
professional office, which is designated as a 

Contractor with Outdoor Storage (see Article 2). The 
proposal consists of constructing a new 1,200 
square foot building to house vehicles and a 

workshop for the outfitting work.

Category Total: 1

24-3-E 9/19/2024 Open
Conservation easement with the 

, two properties
Category Total: 1

24-13-M 7/16/2024 Open
BLA of .328 acres from Parcel  to Parcel ; and to 
vacate a previously platted 30' access easement (see 

) 

24-14-M 8/26/2024 Open
Boundary line adju en Parcels  and 

24-15-M 9/4/2024 Open Boundary Line Adjustment

Category Total: 3

24-9-MPC 7/8/2024 Closed  2 MSD Lot 3 (septic)

24-10-MPC 9/18/2024 Open
Minor Plat Change to move septic reserve for

proposed house and garage.
Category Total: 2

24-23-PCW 7/15/2024 Closed

Waiver from the requirements of Section 21.401 and 
21.402.D of the Subdivision Regulations to allow an 

existing fence within the required 50’ access 
easement of a proposed minor subdivision

24-24-PCW 7/19/2024 Closed

Waiver from the requirements of Section 20.203B of
the Subdivision Regulations that requires the 
proposed project to process as a Minor Site 

Development. The project consists of the installation 
of a crane/bungee area affixed to a 400 sf slab, a 
320 sf storage container, a 1,225 sf registration 

kiosk, a 75 sf floating dock, and a 216 sf staircase. 
The proposal will also include various walking paths, 

gravel drive aisles, grass & gravel parking, and 

24-25-PCW 8/20/2024 Open

Waiver from Section 24.118 of the Subdivision
Regulations to extend the timeframe to bond and 

record the final plat for Phase 2 of the  
 to December 31, 2024.

24-26-PCW 8/21/2024 Open

Waiv rom Section 20.201B of the
Subdivision Regulations to reduce the required 

access easement width of  Lane from 50' 
to 40' and to allow more than five lots to access 

 Lane for a proposed two lot minor 
subdivision

Category Total: 4

Planning 
Commission 

Variance (1979 
ZO)

24-3-PCV 8/30/2024 Open

Variance from Section 2.1B of the 1979 Subdivision 
Ordinance (parent to child exemption) to lift the 
single family restriction to allow for a detached 

Accessory Dwelling Unit (In-Law Suite) pursuant to 
Section 8.15A of the Zoning Ordinance.

Category Total: 1

24-4-FPA 8/21/2024 Open

Final Plat Amendment to lift the single family
restriction for a detached accessory dwelling unit for 

a family member. See Note #9 on Final Plat PB  
PG . (File#24-5-FPA)

Category Total: 1

24-5-RR 8/19/2024 Open

1. Revise layout from previously approved 61
townhouse lots to 45 villa Lots. 2. Revise road

horizontal and vertical alignments to accommodate 
villa Product. 3. Revise grading based on new road 

horizontal and vertical alignments, Villa product and 
drainage patterns. 4. Revise water, sanitary and 
storm drainage system as required by revised 

Horizontal and vertical layout. 5. Minor revisions to 
erosion and sediment control plan. 6. Minor revision 

to landscaping to coordinate with new layout.

24-6-SP 9/27/2024 Open
Concept Plan for a Major Site Plan (water bottling 

facility).

Category Total: 2

24-20-SD 7/16/2024 Open Creation of Lot 2B and 2C - Residue

24-21-SD 7/19/2024 Open Creation of six FT lots and a residue parcel

24-22-SD 8/12/2024 Open
Creation of three residential lots and one

commercial lot (Lot 1).

24-23-SD 8/14/2024 Open
Minor Subdivision to create Family Transfer Lots 2-

12

24-24-SD 8/23/2024 Open
Family Transfer Minor Subdivision Lots C-1 Residue;

C-2, and C-3

24-25-SD 8/26/2024 Open Lots 3-A and 3-B - Family Transfer Minor Subdivision

24-26-SD 8/27/2024 Open Final Plat - Phase 2 includes:

Planning and Zoning Quarterly Report
07/01/2024 - 09/30/2024 (Generated 10/21/2024)

Conditional 
Use Permit

Easements

Merger or 
Boundary Line 

Adjustment

Miscellaneous 
Fees

Subdivision

Planning 
Commission 

Waiver

Final Plat 
Amendment

Site Plan



24-27-SD 9/6/2024 Open Creation of 1 lot and a residue

24-28-SD 9/16/2024 Open Creation of 3 lots

24-30-SD 9/27/2024 Open Final Plat Family Transfer

24-31-SD
Proposed subdivision of Lot A & B on lands owned 

by 
Category Total: 11

24-27-ZC 7/10/2024 Closed
Accessory Dwelling Unit for a family member 

(detached in-law suite).

24-28-ZC 7/12/2024 Closed
Dish proposes to install {3} antennas (3) frames. (8} 
RRUs. (11 OVP, and (1) hybrid cable, and ground 

24-29-ZC 7/22/2024 Closed

Short term rental:  

 Enterprise approved for 
) units/lodges.

24-19-ZC 7/26/2024 Closed
 - Short Term Rental

Five lodging units on each of the four tracts (twenty 
lodging units total).

24-30-ZC 7/29/2024 Closed

Tower/Site Modifications:
Removal of: (3) Existing Antennas; (3) Existing 

TMA’s; (6) Existing Coax Cables; (1) Existing Battery 
Cabinet; 6201 ODE Cabinet with All Modules & 

Radios; and,
Installation of: (3) New Ericsson-Air6419 
B41 Antennas; (3) New  Commscope - W-
65A-R1 Antennas; (3) New Ericsson 4460 
B25 + B66 Radios; (3) New  Ericsson (2") 
6x24 Hybrid Cables; (1) New Ericsson 

6160 Ac V1 Enclosure; (1) New Ericsson B160 Battery 
Cabinet; (2) New BB 6630, (1) New DUG20, (1) New 
RBS 6601, (1) New RP 6651, (1) PSU 4813 VR4A, (1) 
CSR ICRE V2 Router Inside New Enclosure; Mount 

and Structural Modifications

24-31-ZC 8/7/2024 Closed
Telecommunication Tower Modification: removal & 

installation of new antennas and supporting 
equipment.

24-32-ZC 8/12/2024 Open  Convenience Store & Gas Station

24-33-ZC 8/13/2024 Closed
Short Term Rental

No meals proposed to be served; renting space in 
basement through AirBnb

24-34-ZC 8/16/2024 Closed Short Term Rental: 

24-35-ZC 8/16/2024 Closed

Existing cell tower modification: to remove (1) MW 
dish, install (1) new MW dish, remove (1) ODU, 

install (2) new ODUs, remove (2) coax cable lines, 
install (2) hybrid lines, and install (2) control cables. 

Please see Sheet G-0001 for scope of work.

24-37-ZC 8/16/2024 Closed Short Term Rental: 

24-36-ZC 8/30/2024 Closed Agricultural Tourism

24-38-ZC 8/30/2024 Closed Farm Brewery, Agricultural Event Facility, Agritourism

24-38-ZC 8/30/2024 Closed Farm Brewery, Agricultural Event Facility, Agritourism

24-39-ZC 9/13/2024 Open Farm Vacation Enterprise: five lodging unitys

24-40-ZC 9/20/2024 Open

Category Total: 16

24-25-ZV 7/1/2024 Open

Variance request from Section 8.14B.1.a to reduce 
the minimum lot size for the proposed use from 5 
acres to .63 acres and Section 8.14B.1.b to reduce 

the number of required parking spaces.

24-26-ZV 7/23/2024 Open
Variance from Section 8.17B.1 to reduce the 
minimum lot size of a proposed five (5) unit 

campground from 10 acres to 5.92 acres.

24-27-ZV 7/23/2024 Open
Variance from Section 8.17B.1 to reduce the 
minimum lot size of a proposed four (4) unit 

campground from 10 acres to 3 acres.

24-28-ZV 7/26/2024 Open

Variance from Appendix B to reduce the side 
setback & unscreened buffer area along the eastern 

property line for an addition to an accessory 
structure and the installation of a driveway.

24-29-ZV 7/26/2024 Open

Variance from Section 5.7B of the Zoning Ordinance 
(as amended 05/01/03) to reduce the rear setback 

from 50’ to 5’ for a 66’ x 40’ accessory structure 
(detached garage).

24-30-ZV 8/23/2024 Open

Variance request from Appendix A to reduce the 
rear setback from 50' to 4' along the southern 
property line for a 15’ x 25’ accessory structure 

(greenhouse).

24-31-ZV 8/26/2024 Open
Variance from Section 8.17B.1 to reduce the 

minimum lot size of a proposed 10 unit 
campground from 10 acres to 6.3 acres.

24-32-ZV 9/24/2024 Open
Variance from Section 4.6D & Section 8.2 to reduce 

the distance requirement along the eastern 
property line from 50’ to 12’ for a 24’x 30’ barn.

24-33-ZV 9/26/2024 Open
Variance from Section 9.7 to reduce the rear setback 

from 12' to 6' for a 12' x 20' (240 sf) accessory 
structure.

24-34-ZV 9/26/2024 Open
Variance from Section 9.7 to reduce the rear setback 

from 12' to 6' for a 12' x 20' (240 sf) accessory 
structure.

Zoning 
Certificate

Zoning Variance



24-35-ZV 9/26/2024 Open
Variance from Section 9.7 to reduce the side setback

from 15' to 5' for a 12' x 20' (240 sf) accessory 
structure.

24-36-ZV 9/26/2022 Open
Variance from Section 9.7 to reduce the side setback

from 15' to 5' for a 12' x 20' (240 sf) accessory 
structure.

24-37-ZV 9/26/2024 Open Eliminate buffer, parking standards, and drive isle

24-38-ZV 9/27/2024 Open Adjust 25' setback between buildings

Category Total: 14
Grand Total: 56

Zoning Variance



Jefferson County, West Virginia 
Department of Engineering, Planning, and Zoning 

Office of Planning and Zoning 
116 East Washington Street, 2nd Floor 

Charles Town, WV 25414 

Email: planningdepartment@jeffersoncountywv.org Phone: (304) 728-3228

Email:  zoning@jeffersoncountywv.org Fax: (304) 728-8126

Planner’s Memorandum 

Planning Commission Meeting 

November 12, 2024 

1) Department of Engineering, Planning and Zoning County Offices Contact Information

BUILDING PERMITS & INSPECTIONS 304-725-2998 permits@jeffersoncountywv.org 

IMPACT FEES 304-728-3331 - mmason@jeffersoncountywv.org 

ENGINEERING 304-728-3257 - engineering@jeffersoncountywv.org 

PLANNING & ZONING 304-728-3228 - planningdepartment@jeffersoncountywv.org, zoning@jeffersoncountywv.org 

GIS & ADDRESSING 304-724-6759 - gis@jeffersoncountywv.org 

2) Planning Commissioner Self Evaluation

Discussion of Results of Self Evaluation Forms

3) County Commission Direction:

 At the October 17, 2024 County Commission meeting, the Commission directed Legal Counsel

and the County Administrator to investigate the legality and effectiveness of Berkeley County’s

policy requiring developers building 15 or more homes to perform hydrogeological testing

relating to the quantity and quality of groundwater at the proposed site prior to approval.

4) Report related to 2024 WV Trails Conference

5) Upcoming PC meetings

 Next Regular meeting date: December 10, 2024

o 7:00 pm Planning Commission Meeting

The following dates relate to the adoption of the 2045 Comprehensive Plan: 

 Per WV Code 8A-3-7c, after the presentation of the recommended 2045 Comprehensive

Plan by the Planning Commission to the governing body and prior to adoption, the

governing body shall hold a public hearing after giving notice. At the October 17, 2024

County Commission meeting, the County Commission scheduled a Public Hearing to be

held on Wednesday, December 4, 2024 at 6 pm at Jefferson High School Auditorium,

with an Open House with staff from 5 pm – 6 pm.

 Per WV Code 8A-3-8, within the latter of ninety days or three scheduled meetings after the

submission of the recommended comprehensive plan to the County Commission, the

County Commission must act by either adopting, rejecting or amending the 2045

Comprehensive Plan. The 90 days ends on January 14, 2025.






